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1. Acronyms, Abbreviations and Glossary of Terms

Al Acronyms and Abbreviations

CEO
CEMASTEA
BOG
CBK
ICPAK
IPSAS
FY

NT
QA
QSHA
PiM
PPE
PSASE
SAGAs
sC
STEM
TaC
INSET

B: Glossary of Terms

Chiefl Executive Officer

Centre for Mathematics, Science and Technology Education in Africa
Board of Governors

Central Bank of Kenya

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya
Intermational Public Sector Accounting Standards
Financial Year

Mational Treasury

Office of the Auditor General

Oecupational Safety and Health Act of 2007
Public Finance Management

Property Plant & Equipment

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board
Semi~Autonomous Government Agencies

State Corporation

Science, Technology, Education and Mathematics
Teachers Service Commission

In-service Training

Fiduciary Management- Members of Management diréctly entrusted with the responsibility of
finanecial resources of the organisation

Comparative Year- Méans the prior period,
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2. Key Centre Information and Management

{a) Background information
Centre for Mathematics, Science and Technology Education in Africa (CEMASTEA) is & state
‘corporation under the Ministry of Education Science and Technology, State Department of Early
Learning and Basic Education formed under legal notice no96 of 2006 as a body corparate with
perpetual succession and a commaon seal, and which may in its corporate name sue or be sued, own and
dispose of property, and do all such other things or acts as may be done by a body corporate centre.
CEMASTEA is domiciled in Kenya and has no branches in any other part of the country.

(b) Principal Activities

The principal mandate of CEMASTEA is o provide continuous professional development of
teachers in STEM Education.

Core Functions

To realize quality teacher capacity development and STEM education the specific functions of
CEMASTEA include 1o;

1. Provide training under policies specified by the Ministry of Education, TSC, and other relevant
stakeholders;

2. Conduct research to inform Teacher Professional Development programs, internal quality sssurance
processes, and policics, .

3. Organize and conduct seminars, workshops, conferences and symposia in STEM education and
teacher capacity development;
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4.

5.
f,

Print, publish and disseminate information and résearch related to STEM education and teacher
capacity development;
Provide advisory and consultancy serviees in STEM edueation and teacher capacity development;
Develop local and international partnerships, linkages and collabosations with Government agencies,
institutions and organizations with interests in STEM education and teacher capacity development;
Function as the Secretariat of the Strengthening of Mathematics and Science Education in Africa
(SMASE-Africa) Network and ADEA's Inter-Country Quality Nodé on Mathematics and Science
Education (ICON-MSE);
Support the implementation of STEM in the Competency-Based Curriculum (CRC
Key Management
The Centre's day-to-day management is under the following key Management:
Key Management
No. | Designation Name J
I | Chief Executive Officer Mrs. Jacinta Akatss, HSC
2 | Deputy Director-Administration Mrs Lydia Muriithi
3 | Deputy Director-Training M. Patrick Kogolla
i 4 | Management Representative hﬁdﬁlﬂd}s Masai
5 | Finance Officer CPA, Bradon Sila

Board of Governors are as follows;

No. w
| | Chairman i Dir.Pius Mutisya , OGW
= Independent Member Mrs, Ngina Kairu
Independent Member | Ms Nanzala Mayabi
Independent Member Mr. Peterson Maina

- Member, Representing National Treasury

Mr, Sa.m;:i-i{ipmp

Member, Copted Member

FCPA, Edwin Makori

e e I = T B o B~ 6

Member, Representing SCAC

Mr. Edwin Mummi

Member, Representing PS, MOE

Mr. Andrew Rukaria
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Key Centre Information and Management (continued)

{¢) Fiduciary Management
The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30" June
2023 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Now Designation | Name

| Chief Exeeutive Officer Mrs Jacinta Akatsa, HSC

2 Deputy Director-Administration Mrs Lydia Muriithi
E Mg. Deputy Director-Training Mr Patrick Kogolla

4 Management Representative Mrs Gladys Masai

5 Finance Officer - CPA, Bradon Sila

{d) Fidueiary Oversight Arrangements
During the FY 2022/2023 the board formed the following oversight committees;

I. Finance and General-purpose committee (FGPC)
The purpose and mandate of the FGPC is to advise the Board of Directors in fulfilling its
obligations and oversight responsibilities relating to finance, human resource, administration,
procurement management, and assets and liabilities of the Centre,
The following are the members;

o Name

Mirs, M;rgawi.ﬁgi.na.lis;im

Ms. Manzala Mayabi

Mr. Samuel !{lpmp
Mr. Andrew Rukaria

BEEIE

2. Planning And Development Committee
The purposeé and mandate of the PDC is to deliberate, on behalf of the Board of Directors .all
mitters related to the Centre’s strategic guidance and direction, planning and development.
The following are the members;

No [ Name Designation:
1. Mz, Nanzala Mayabi Chair

2, Mr. Peterson Maina Member

3. FCPA Edwin Makori Member

£ Mr.Andrew Rukaria Member

vii
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3. Technical Committec
The purpose and mandate of the TC is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities
on technical matters that include the core mandate of training and research,

The following are the members;

Mo Mame Désignaﬂun Il
1. | Mrs. Margaret Ngina Kairu Chair

2. | Mr. Samuel Kiprop Member
3. | FCPA Edwin Makori Member

4. Mr. Andrew Rukaria Member

4. Aundit Committee
The Audit Committee reviewed the audit committee and internal audit charters, examined the
internal audit reports, and ensured the risk management framework for the Centre was developed.
The ntJuwirlg aré the members:

No Mame Designation
1. | FCPA Edwin Makori Chair

. Mr. Peterson Maina Member

3. Mr. SBamuel Kiprop Member

4. | Mr. Edwin Murimi Member

() Headquariers

P.O. Box 24214-00502
Karen, Bogani Road
Nairobi, KENYA

(g} Confacis
Telephone: 020-2044406
Phone Mo, +254-T06722697,
+254=TEOTH 76438
E-mail: director@cemastea ne ke
Website: www.comasten.ac ke

(h) Bankers
i) Kenya Commercial Bank
Karen Branch
P.O Box 224410 - 00502

Mairobi, Kenya

i) Co-operative Bank
MNairobi Business Centre Branch
PO Box 4823 1-00104,
Mairobi, Kenya

Vil
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i) MCBA Bank
Junciion Branch
P.O Box 19555 00202
Mairobi, Kenya

iv) Mational Bank of Kenya
Times Tower Branch
PO Bos 1 203 6-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

(i} Independent Auditors

Auditor-Crencral
Office of the Auditar General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
PO, Hox 30084
GPO 00100
Mairobi, Kenya

(j) Principal Legal Adviser
The Altormey General
P.O. Box 40012
City Square G000
Mairohi, Kenya
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A The Board of Governors (BOG)

D, Pins Mutisya, OGW
Hoard Chair

Mrs. Jacinta L. Akatsa, HSC- Chief
Executive Officer

Br. Pius Mutisya, OOGW was bom on 12 December 1958 He
holds & PhO. in Epidemiclogy, M.Ed. in Leadership and
Policy, BEdA. in Physics'Chemistry and a Centificate in
Educaticn INSET Management.

He has thity-four (34) years progressive experience in
Education administration, with knowledge of Science

lliducﬂtiﬂn. Education administration; scientific research,

governance  and  operations of boards of  directors,
management and policy.

He is an independent board member and chairman o the
board.

Previously has been the Director, Quality assurance and
standards, and Director, Field co-ordination and services at
the Ministry of Education (MaE).

Mrs Jacinta Akatza, HSC wiis born on 14% May 1962 She
holifs an Executive Master of Business Administration and
Bachelor of Education degree (1B.Ed. Science),

Mrs Akatsa is responsible for the running of the centre affairs
tor ensure that the mission and efficiency of the Centre is
achioved. She is the secretary to the Board of Manzgement
and chairperson of the Senior Management Committee. She is
also responsible for spearheading parinerships of the Centre
and directs the Centre to achieve its mandate,

She is the secretary of the CEMASTEA board of governors

|
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Mrs, MNgina Kairu
Board Member

s Naneala Mavahbi
Board Member

Mrs. Mgina Kairu was bornon 129 Jusse 1962 8he holds a
BSe in Food Science and Technology and a Diploma in
Feucation plus various qualifications in Quality Assurance,
Funding and Safeguarding of learners

She brings a wealth of knowledge, skills and experience in
Further Education, having worked for 16 vears-in the Uk
leading teams to deliver consistently high-quality Teaching,
Learning and Assessment {TLA), o raise achicvement rates
af all types of learners in a variety of leaming environments.

Her experience is extensive and includes teaching, teacher
teaining, monitoring & quality evaluion of classroom
delivery and work-based leamning, curriculum development,
implementing and menitoring of standards, inter alia.

She is alse astute at stakeholder management, influsncing and
negoliating, to advance parinerships between the education
sector, government and industry for the benefit of leamars.

She is an independent board member and chairperson to the
Finance and General Purpose Committee (FGPC).She i also
a member of beard technical committee

Mz, Mayabi was bom on 25® June 1992. She holds a
Bachelor of Laws (University of Mairobi), Post graduate
diploma from the Kenya School of Law and an MBA in
Strategic Management from Strathmore University {on
zoing). She is an Advocate of the High Court of Kenya, &
member of Law Society of Kenya and East Africa Law
Saciety,

Additionally, she brings a wealth of legal expertise, having
heen a legal practitioner for close to a decade, in varioms

Iuapauitic—s where she been exposed fo numerous complex |

issues specializing in areas including but not limited to
litigation, commercial law, land, conveyance and envirenment
law, emphoyment and labour laves,

She is an independent member of the board and chairperson
to the board plaoning and development committee. She also
sits a5 member of Finance and General purpose
Committes(FGPC)
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Mr. Andrew Bularia
CBoard Member

Mr. Peterson Maina
Beoeard Member

Mr. Rukaria was born 27® December 1964 He has a wealth of
experience in Education Administration For more than
20years. He is a board member representing the Principal
Secretary, Early Learning and Basic Education.

He is 8 member of three board commitiees namely; Finance
and General Purpose Committee, Planning and Development
Committee and the Technical Commities

Mr. Maina was born on 1* Janoary 1983, He is

an educationist having trained at Highbridge College at
Parklamds, Mairobi and later pursued Bachelor of Education
degree at Mount Kenya University.

He has been in the education feld as a teacher and trainer in
bath public (BoM's} and private institutions. His more than
fiftecn years of firsthand experience hias seei him play key
rales in curriculum implementation and assessments,
administration and management in education instititions
across the twa levels of the Basic Education.

He iz also a trained Examiner with the Kenya National
Examinations Council, His vast and real-time experience in
education blends well with the CEMASTEA's core mandate
of Capacity Building for curriculum implementers in Africa
in the ficlds of Mathematics, Science and Technology.,

He is an independent board member and he sit as a member
i the Board Audit committee and planning and development
committes

Xl
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FOPA, Edvwin Malori
Hoard Member

Mr. Samuoel Kiprop
Board Member

FOCPA Makor was born on 4% November 1975.He holds a

degres in Commerce {(Finance and Accounting) and an MBA
in Finance from the University of Nairobi.

He is a passionate, high performing, leader with brond
managerial experience in Leading teams, Strategy, Finance,
Business Development, Innovation, and IT. A solid business
executive with ability to lead and motivate ordinary people to
achieve excellence. Inspires individuals and teams to deliver
world class performance in their organizations.

He is the CEOQ, ICPAK and has been a Lecturer in the School
of Business at Egerton University and Nairobi Universily,
Kenya. He has also served as a board member at KASNEE,
IFAC and other boards locally and internationally

He is a co-opted member of the board and he is ihe
chairperson to the beard audit committee. He i3 also a
member of planning and development commitiee and the

| technical committes

Mr. Kiprop was born on 28% July 1980, He holds a Masters of
Development Policy from Kerean Development Institute,
School of Public Policy and Management, and a BA m
Economics from Kenyatta University. He has undergons
extensive professional training in public investment and iz a
cerified Training of Trainers participant in  Investment
Appraisal and Risk Analysis from Queen’s University,
Canada. He is also a member of Economists Society of
Kenya.

Mr. Kiprop has over 12 years” experience as an Economist in
the Public Sector in Kenya, Currently, he iz a Senior
Economist at the Mational Treasury and specializes in the
fields of public finance, investment appraizal, and economic
development policy. He has worked extensively on planning
and budgeting, monitoring and evaluation of public
investment projects and programmes, strategic planning, and
performance management,

Mr. Kiprop has also served as a secretary o various
taskforces on establishment of public funds and on public
investment management in Kenya, Previously Mr. Kiprop
worked as an Economist at the State Department for
Economic Planning with the profile of developing alternative
strategies on poverty alleviation.

He represents the PS Mational Treasury and sits in the
Fintnce and General Purpose Comimittes, He is also a member
of audit committee and technical committee

%1l
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4. Key Management Team

i N P —= =,
M. dacinta L. Akaisa, HSC- Chief Executive Officer
She holds an Executive Master of Business Administeation and
Bachelor of Education degree (B.Ed. Science).

Mrs, Jacinta Akatsa is responsible for the minning of the centre affairs
to ensure thal the mission and efficiency of the Centre is achieved. She
is the secretary fo the Board of Management and chairperson of the
seniar Management Committes. She is also responsible for
spearheading partnerships of the Centre and directs the Centre to
achieve its mandate,

Mirs. Evdia Muriithi- Deputy Director
She holds Master of Business Administration {Stratogic Management)
and Bachelors of Education (Science Botany and Zoology).

She is the Deputy Director CEMASTEA responsible for the Centre’s
operalions, chairs the Budget Implementation Committee and the
Human Resource Advisory Commitiee. She is also a member of Kenya
Institute of Management (KIM).

Mr. Pairick Kogolla- Deputy Direetor 1'raining
Holds M.Ed. {Teacher Education), B.Ed. (Chemistry & Mathematics),

Patrick is the Deputy Director, Training, He is respansible for
coordinating the overall CEMASTEA Training/ Academic Programmes

W
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Mer. Bradon Sila- Finance Officer

He halds an MBA Finance, B. Com (Finance), CPA (K), and 15 a
member of Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Kenya
(ICPAK).

He is the head of Finance and Accounts Departments and is in charge
of planning, sourcing and managing financial resources to achieve
corporate objectives.

Ml Ciladvs Masai- Coovdinator Field Services & Managemeni
Representalive

She holds an M.A in Project Planning and Management, B.Ed. Science
and Graduate Diploma in Leadership Development in ICT and the
Knowledge Society.

She coordinates the Centre's Field Services Program and is the Cruality
Management Representative.

e e et SN P

She holds a Masters in Project Planning and B, Ed, (Science) double
mathematics

Mrs. Mary Sichangi-Tlead of Partnership and Linkages

She is the Coordinator Partnerships and Linkages Program that works
to expand the Center's collaborative TPD-MSE programs.

Mis, Rose Njuki- Human Respuree Management OiTicer |

She holds a MSc. Human Resource Management, BSc. Human
Resource Management, a Certified Public Secretarics (CPS-K) and a
member of the Institute of Human Resource Management (IHRM). She
is currently undentaking a Bachelor of Laws (LLE) from the University
of Mairabd,

She is the Head of Human Resource Department.

Ay
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M. Lvdia Kang'ara-Supply Chain Mansagement Officer |

She isa B.Com {Procurement and SCM option) graduate, a member of
Kemya Institute of Supplies Management {KI1SM).

Currently she is undertaking MSe. in Project Management and CIPS
professional course.

She is the head of Supply Chain management department.

Mr. dohn Makanda-Coordinator Secongdary Program

He holds M.Se. in Education and Bachelor of Education (B.Ed)
He is the Coordinator of the Secondary program at the Centie and a
Phyzics Mational Trainer,

Ms. Nancy Nui- Dean, Mathematics

She holds M Ed, (Mathematics Education) and Bachelor of Education
B.Ed.

She is the Dean, Mathematics deparimient and a National trainer in
miathematics,

Mr. Philip Magte- Dean, Physics
He holds a Master's degree in Science in Computing and Information
systems and Bachelor's degree in Science Education

He is the Head of the Physics department and a National trainer in
Physics,

wvi
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M. Kiziie Makoba-Coordinator STEM and Innovations Frogrm
and Dean- Biology.

He holds a Master of Education and Bachelor of Education- Science.
He is the Coordinator STEM Program and the Dean, Biology
department. He is alsa a National Trainer, Biology and also conducts
research in inovative teaching and leaming strategies in mathematics
and science education,

My, Samuel Gachuhi- Dean, Chemisiry

He holds M.Ed,, Admin & Planning and a B. ED (Science).
He is the Dean, Chemistey department and a National trainer in
Chemistry.

Mr. Joseph Ngugi- Internal Auditor
He holds a BBA {Accounting), CPA 1 and is 4 member of Institute of
Internal Auditors (11A).

He is responsible for the provision of Internal Auditing and advisory
services to the Board and management and assisting in controlling risk
and monitoring complinnce. He is also the secretary of the Intermal
Aundit Commitiee of the Board.

Mr. Paul Waihochi- Conrdinator 1CT Program

He holds Master of Ads in Counseling Psychology, Bachelor of
Education {B.Ed.) and Diploma in Project management.,

He is responsible for managing the 1CT programs at the Centre. He is in
charge of planning, sourcing and implementing the 1CT programs,

My, Geovee Kirnja- Coordinafor Primsey I'rogram
He holds Master of Education {Communication Technology) and
Bachelor of Edveation (3. Ed.- Science)

He coordinates all training activities in the Primary Programme and a
National Trainer in Biology.

Xyl
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Dr. Mungal Njoroge- Coordipator Research & Development,
Bnowledge Management.

He holds a Doctarate in Education, Master of Education and B.Ed.
Stcience,

He is the Coordinator Research & Development, Knowledge
Management.

Mr. Thuse Karsnje- Coordinator Performance Contracting

He holds Master of Education { Leadership and Management) and B.Ed.
Beience.

He is the Coordinator, Performance Contracting and Reporting for the
Centre and a Biology National Trainer.

M, Mary Namunvak- Hospitality Officer 1
She holds a B.Sc. in Hospitality Management and Diploma in Catering

and accommodation management.

She heads the Hospitality department and is responsible for the
Centre’s catering and accommodation services,

Ms. Ann Mumbi- Communication Officer |
She holds a Masters in Curriculum Developmient and Bachelor of
Educiation Arts (English and Literature),

She is responsible for the provision of communication guidelines,
policies and advisory services as well as the secretary Editorial
commitiee,

Ms. Mercy Mbugua- Administration Officer |

She holds a Bachelor's degree in Social Sciences {Sociology and
Anthropology). She is currently undertaking a Master's degree in
Business Administeation,

She is the head of the Administration Department,

KWL
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Mz, Beatrice Machariy- Coordinater Special Pro
Lengiting

She holds 8 Master of Science in Teaching and Curriculum; Master of
Business Administration and Bachelor of Education (Science].

She coordinates the setivities in the Special program, special learning
sechion.
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5. Chairman's Statement

Dear stakeholders,
I am plessed to present the Chairman's report on the financial

statements of CEMASTEA for the financial year ending 30™
Tune, 2023, As the Chairman of the institution's Board of
Gevernors, | take great pride in providing you with an overview
of our financial performance and the transparency of our
operations,

_ ! 1 am delighted to report that the financial performance of
: i CEMASTEA for the financial year 2022/2023 has heen

-:nmm::ncfnhi:
Our revenue slreams have remained sirong and diversified, with significant contributions from
government grants and development partners. We have also been diligent in managing our EXPENses
while ensuring that the quality of our training programs and services remiains uncompromised,
CEMASTEA recognizes the importance of transparency and accountability in the management of
public funds. Our financial statements are preparcd with the highest level of integrity and have
undergone rigorous internal and external audits to provide assurance to our stakeholders,

During the financial year 202272023, the Centre faced various challenges but the most significant
challenge was the delayed approval of trainings concept notes which affected traiming program but
the centre overcame this challenge through the strategy of online training of teachers. The centre
also managed to train 30,550 newly recruited Junior Secondary School (J85) teachers

The Centre is now a State corporation and as we look into the future, we remain committed o the
mission of continuously developing competencies for sustainable development through STEM
education. The Centre’s mandate has been expanded 1o include research in STEM which will inform
innovations in teaching and leaming .CEMASTEA is ready to adapt 1o the evolving needs of the
training sector by ensuring that our programs remain relevant and impactful,

As Chairman, 1 assure you that we will continue to uphold the pringiples of transparency,
accountability, and good governance to achieve our mission and vision.

I would like to appreciate the board members for their diligence and commitment in providing
oversight and advice to the management

X5
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6. Report of the Chief Exccutive Officer

I am pleased to present the Annual Report and Financial Statements
for FY 2022/2023. This report has been prepared in conformity
with the Sections 81 (1, 2, 3, 4 and 5) of the Public Finance

Management Act, 2012 and in accordance with the Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) accrual basis which require the
Accounting Officer of a government entity to prepare financial
slatements in respect to that entity,

This year's report provides information of the Centre’s key

ﬂ IIﬂ-JnhH.r b Astan, HED .!.

achievements of various CEMASTEA Programs, structure and

budget performance against actual amounts for the current and prior year performance. In the
Financial year ended 30" June 2023 CEMASTEA revenue incressed by 4.52% fo Kshs
1,020,096,174 compared to Kshs 976,016,865 in the financial year 2021/2022.This was attributed
by increase in Appropriation in Aid (AIA) and capitation grants. Thére was minimal redection in
expenditures due to cost control measures put by management, The centre’s net assels increased
from Kshs 1,188,030,505 in FY 2021/2022 to Kshs 1 427,771 £79 in FY 2022/2023.

In addition, the Centre received Kshs 979,681 666 revenue from the National Treasury through the
Ministry of Education . The funds have been used majorly to train 30,550 JSS teachers among other

trainings,

During the Financial year, the Centre faced various challenges but the most pronounced was
delayed approval of training concept notes which affected the teaining programs. The centre
overcame this challenge by providing blended mode of training and due to this strategy
CEMASTEA was able to train JSS, primary teachers and ICT intergration in STEM

Dear Stakeholders, | am confident of bright future as the nation gears in the implementation of
STEM Education. | am happy to report that the Centre is now a state corporation with expanded
mandate of training and research .The Centre is committed 1o establishing more STEM schools
through the Ministry of Education. We will continue to implement sound financial management
practices and enhance our training programs, and explore new avenues for revenue generation and
cost Optimization; with a focus on innovation and efficiency. We are confident in our ability to

receive greater success in the coming years.

1
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Finally T hope that as we continue o dischiarge our mandate, in ollaboration with our stakeholders,
we will realize significant milestones in ensuring effective and efficient service delivery in training

and research.

| would like to express my gratitude to the Board of Governors, our staff, partners and Stakeholders
for their unwavering support and commitment to the growth and development of CEMASTEA

Thank vou,

Mrs. Jacinta Akatsa, HSC
Chief Executive Officer
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1. Statement of Performance against Predetermined Objectives for FY 2023/2023

CEMASTEA has five strategic pillars/ themes/issues and objectives within the current Strategic
Plan for the FY 2022/2023-4. These strategic pillars/ themes/ issues are ag follows:

Pillar / Strategic Issue: Competency Development in STEM

Pillar / Strategic Issue: Research Consultancy and Knowledge Management

Pillar / Strategic Issue: Positioning and Strengthening the Centre

Pillar / Strategic Tssue: Financial Resource Resilience and Sustainability.,

Pillar / Strategic Issue: Advoeacy, Networking and Partnerships

CEMASTEA develops its annual work. plans based on the above five pillar / strategic issues.
Assessment of the Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis,
The Centre achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2022123 period for its five stratepic
pillars, as indicated in the table below:

STRATEGIC OBIECTIVE

Activilios Achievement

Frogramme

Dhjectivies ol

PILLAR

ihe
Programmi

{(FY 202223}

Positioning | Tostrengthen | Secondary | Strengthening | Numberof | 1) Develop | 1) Training
and training Programme | Capacity of SCDEs training materials
Strengthening | programmes Subs-County trained module were
of the Centre. | at all levels Directors of developed
Education o
suppon the P
implementation 2} Conduct | 2) Training
of Training Wils
CEMASTEA canduted on
PrOErAINS 22nd o 241‘.h
February
2023, A total
of 372 SCDE
i were trained
3} Compile | 3) The
training report
report compiled.

MXIV



" Centre for Mathematies, Science and Technology Education in Africa (CEMASTEA)

Annual Report and Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June, 2023

Strengthening | Number of Develop | 2) Training
capacity of the | CTCDC teaining was
County members module, conducted
Teacher Conduct and 279
Capacity Training, CTCDC
Drevelopment Prepare members
Commitiee Report trained on
(CTCDC) 25% and 260
members for February
effective 2023
utilization of
SMASE funds. | -
To strengthen Number of | Develop Module was
the capacity of QASOYs | training prepared, 357
QASOs to trained. madule, QASDs were
monitor and Conduct trained and
suppart the Training, report
implementation Prepare prepaned.
of CBC and Report
STEM
activities il
school level
ICT training Toenhance | Numberof | 1) Training
for teachers of | efficiency teachers materials
all subjects and trained were
effectiveness developed
in teaching 2) Training
and learning wias
psing [CT conducted on
2l
February to
3nd March
2023 on the
CEMASTEA
portal and &
total of 1963
teachers
frained
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8. Corporate Governance Statement
The. Board of CEMASTEA regards comporate povernance as key to the achievement of
CEMASTEA’s mission and vision and is commitied to applying the core governance principles set
out in this Board Charter.
CEMASTEA shall adopt high standards and apply strict mules of conduct based on the best
governance practices.  As part of this commitment, the Board shall adbere to good governiance by
embracing the following principles:

(&) Dh.-sﬂrvil_:g high standards of cthical and moral behaviour.

(B}  Acting in the best interests of CEMASTEA.
{c) Recopnising the legitimate interests of all stakeholders,

(d)  Ensuring that CEMASTEA acts as a good corporate citizen,
In general, the Board members shall act in the best interest of CEMASTEA and uphold their
fiduciary responsibilities and duty of care, The Board will not disclose confidential information, will
avoid real and perceived conflicts of interest and favour the interests of CEMASTEA over athier
interests. Board Members will act honestly and in good Faith that will help to create a culture built
on principles of integrity, accountability and transparency.
In line with Section 3 of the Leadership and Integrity Act, No. 19 of 2012 of the Lavws of Kenya, the
Board will respect the values, principles, and the requirements of the Constitution.
Appointment of Board members
The Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Education is the appointing authority for Board members.
Appointment is made by name and by notice in the Kenya Gazette, The legal notice no. 96 of 2006
makes provision for the appointment of 9 members with the CEO being a member without voling
rights. Appointed Board members comply with the provisions of the Constitution of Kenya and any
applicable legislation. Removal of any Board member is done through formal revocation.,
Roles and Functions of Board Members
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for the overall leadership and that the Members satisfies
its duties and responsibilities. The Chairman ensures. that when members are appointed, they
participate in induction programmes and are thereafier continually developed based on identified
development needs. The Board is responsible for setting and overseeing the overall strategy and
policies that are in line with the Centre’s mandate and meets stakeholders' cxpectations. It
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determines the Centre's mission, vision, purpose and core values of CEMASTEA; approves the
annual budget and financial statements.

To effectively discharge its mandate, the Board has established four committees with specific terms
of teference which clearly identify matters reserved for cach committee. The Board and its
committees meet quarterly in accordance with the Board almanac. The Chairman of the Boards
carns honoraria while the Members eam a sitting allowance for meeting attended up o a maximum
of 4 full board meetings and 6 committee meetings per year. Commillees receive, consider and

approve reports to the Board for approval/adoption,

Statement of compliance and conflict of interest
Each member of the Board of CEMASTEA derives histher authority and position from a legitimate

appointment, The members are bound by fiduciary duty to act in good faith, provide strategic
direction, exercise control and remain accountable through effective leadership, enterprise, integrity
and good judgment in pursuit of CEMASTEA'S best interests. All members observe rules and
regulations goveming the conduct of the Centre as contained in the Board Charter.

Risk management

CEMASTEA Board of Governors are committed 1o a process of Enterprise Risk Management that
puides the identification of risks. This is done through a risk management framework which enables
the mianagement to focus in a holistic manner all risks that the Centre faces in the pursuit of its

mandate. The Board provides oversight in managing the risks at the Centre.

Risk categories
‘e Centre has identified and categorised risks as follows:
|, Strategic risks: These arise oul of the Centre’s strategic plan
2. Financial risks: These are associated with the financial operations of the Centre
3. Operational risks: These risks arise in the course of carrying out the Centre’s mandate of
training and research
4, Legal and regulatory risks-Risks arising from ron-compliance o legal and regulatory

framework,
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ATTENDANCE OF FULL BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

| NO. [ NAME FULL [ AUDIT | FGPC | TECHNICAL | PLANNING AND
_ BOARD DEVELOPMENT
1. | Dr. Pius Mutisya 7 NIA N/A | NA N/A a
Murgaret Ngina Kaiu | 7 NA |2 2 NFA
3. | Brenda Nanzala Mayabi | 7 NA |2 [ NiA 2
4| Peterson Maina 4 Nif NA | NIA M/A
i 5. | FCPA Edwin Makori 5 2 WA |2 2
| Samuel Kiprop & 2 2 2 NiA _
7. | Edwin Murimi 5 2 NA |2 MIA
8. | Andrew Rukaria 5 2 SR i 2 )

MNotes:

i) N/A (Mot Applicable) means that a specific member of the Board was not a member of that
committees;

i) Mr. Andrew Rukaria was an alternate for the Principal Secretary, MOE

iii} The Centre has 4 independent members who include Dr. Pius Mutisya, Chairman: Mrs,

Margaret Ngina Kairu, Ms. Brenda Nanzala Mayabi and Mr. Peterson Maina who are members;

iv) The Centre has 3 alternate members who inelude Mr. Andrew Rukaria alternate for the PS

MOE; Mr. Samuel Kiprop, alternate for the PS National Treasury; and Mr. Edwin

Murimi, alternate for the Inspector General, Inspectorate of State Corporations
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9, Management Discussion and Analysis

Below is & table showing the Centre's financial performance analysis for the last five years.

Finamncial !‘fer]'nrmnnize Trend analysis

Actual Actual Actual an Actual
Audited Audited Actual Andited | audited Unaudited
2015-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023
Revenue Ksh ' Ksh Ksh Ksh
Internally
| Generated
Revenue 8518326 | 19 140,600 4,896,375 7,692,689 29.976,111 |
2| Developments | 55 610000 | 52,510,000 25,000,000 12,500,000 :
3 Recurrent-
 Revenue | 127824634 | 113,499,581 90,833,300 80,624,975 150,361,066
P Rzm_mﬂ_:nl-
Capitation 550,060,200 | 404,779,800 160,118,900 B74,814,000 #29,320,600
5 | Partner funds 20,206,823 24,559,562 4318717 385,201 10,438,397
Total
O Revenme | 769,219,983 | 814,491,545 ¥5167292 976,016,865 |  1,020,096,174
Operating
Expenses
. Personnel
Emoluments 42,856,504 53,666,503 41,007,089 62281323 | 53,820,662 |
P Board
e - ] : - 15,670,773 |
Training,
operaliods
9 i :
administrative 745,176,962
expenses. 635,075,834 281,054,452 | 708,524,986 689,050,746
10 Repairs &
Maintenance 18,688,428 | 13,556,519 | 8,796,132 15,953,377 21,812,619
11| Depreciation | 245003 | 19,208,050 21,168,377 31,662,028 18,446,272
Total
' Operating
g Expenses | P2TS068YT | g5is06906| 352026050 818421714 | 780354800
Operating y
13 Surplus/
Deficit SB.S86014 | gaa03679 | - 66,858,758 157,595,151 | 239,741.374
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The Centre’s financial performance for the last five years as shown in the table above has further
been analysed in below line graph

Expenditure analysis in comparison with Revenues for the financial years 2018/2019 to
202272023

Comparison of Revenue to Operational Costs

8781
L] &
\ B1n.42 BI16.33
(55
=
2
= 21,
=
=
un
b )
5 3532,
L
2018-2018 2019-2020 2000-2071 2021-2022 2022-7023

Financial Year

==w==Total QOperating Expenses

Revenues analysis and allocation of funds during the financial vear 2022/2023

Revenue Allocation

B Internally Generited
Revenyue

| Developments

B Becurrent-Hovens

® Recument-Capitation

| Partner {unds

u Tatal Revenie
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Analysis of allocation of funds during the financial year 2022/2023

; Funds allocation to Operating costs .

m Training, operations and
adminbsiraThie Expenses |

® Repairs & Malntenance

= Depeeciation
|

m Tatak Operating Expenses |

Recurrent-Capitation
a74.81
B9
—
g
= 550,06
= o=
=
L]
v
=
=
Lia
201E-20058 20192020 2lt-2021 -3 MAEr-2024

Financial Year
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Analysis of Appropriation in Aid (ALA) for the Last five Yeurs

Internally Generated Revenue

15,73
18,52 19.14 4
B i
2
=
=
=
E 768
2 a0
0182019 2015-2020 2020-2021 2071-2027 023~ 1023

Financial Year

Training, operations and administrative expenses.

Fa5.18 B
63508

Funds in Millions

2018-2019 1019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2003 023073
Financial Year
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Analysis of development funds for the last five years

Development Funds

54461 5245
o

1
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=

= X500

1
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0. Environmental and Sustainability Reporting

The Centre exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving foree behind everything

we do. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy, putting the customer/Citizen first,

delivering relevant goods and services, and improving operational excellence.

Below is an outling of the organisation’s policies and activities that promote sustainahility,

SN0

L

FOCAL AREA

WHAT HAS BEEN DONE

Environmental
Sustainability
Planning

'Wa gl

l. The Center has an established STEM & Education for
Sustainable Development (ESD) Committee whose work is (o
intergrate matters of Sustainability and Climate Change into
teaching and learning in schools.

2.The Center has developed a Safety Health and Environment
Policy that guides on all matters environmental management.

3. The Center has an established Safety Heaith and Environemnt
committee whose purpose is to champion matters of heath and
safety in the workplace as well as environmental sustainability.

management  and
pollution contral

I. The Center has contracted a NEMA Licensed waste handler to
deal with Solid waste management.

2, The Center operates & NEMA Licensed onsite waste water
treatment and recyling plant thal recycles waste water for reuse.
. For organic waste from the Kitchen, ESD committes operates
a black soldier larvae leaming project that feeds on the waste to
make protein rich alternative feed for poultry and fish,

4. The Center also operates an onsile composting unit that
manages organic compound litter to make rich organic fertliser

Climate
mitigation
hriaplati:::n

change
and

n iy

The center has complied to Climate Change Act of 2016 by

|. Intergrating issues of climate change into teaching and
leaming by developing ESD training module for teachers. The
module was used 1o train teachers on STEM.

4. Installing adequate main water harvesting infrastructure
including gutters and a 200,000 liters capacity underground rain
water tank.

3.Use of renewable energy through Installation of Solar street
lights

Enviranmestal
ecological
énhancement

l. The Ccullé]:_npm-ates an onsite tree nursery with an annual
production capacity of 90,000 scedlings, The nursery supplies
seedlings to staff and community at a subsidised price.
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2. The Center has donated 350 fruit and tree seedlings to Unoa |
Primary School in Makueni for purposes of increasing tree cover

in the school.

5. Environmental | 1, During the Financial year a total of 465 leamers from diffrenct
education and | schools visited CEMASTEA and were taken through the ESD
AWATEness learning projects. A sample feedback from a visiting leamer is

quoted “Conserving water reduces the problem of seareity™

6. Promoting 1. The Center is & member of the Karen I__.a;ng.&ta District |
Environmental Association (KLDA) that involves members on matiers
protection and | environmental conservation and protection.
consérvation 2. The Center received a total of 2700 assorted seedlings from
through Equity Bank to support in tree planting initiatives.
partnerships  with | 3. The Center initiated partnership discusions with Kenya Meit
stakeholders Department on installation of Automatic Weather Stations in

STEM model schools to promote use of weather data In teaching
and learnming

i)  Market place praclices-
The centre through the supply chain management department has ensured thai theré is a competitive
procurement process through open tender advertisements, prequalifieation of suppliers, among other
procurement processes and this has enabled us to achieve competitive market prices and maintain quality of
goods amd services.
We have aimed to achieve transparency in the marketplace in our institution by eommunicating to our clients
and suppliers our operating rules and legal requirements through sengitization to enable the working
rilationship to be fluid and hence achieve conformity. In the financial year 2022/2023, the Centre was ahle o
organise o physical sensitization for suppliers using the Kenya Institute of Supplies Management (EISM)
training body.
CEMASTEA has been able o provide after sabe services in an event of a dispute of services offered or goods
delivered, this has enabled maintain a good relationship with the customers. Furthermore, we have managed
to offer securs payment services to our suppliers and clients, through the shortest time possible which has
built trust and promotes a good working relationship.
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#.  Responsible competition practice.
CEMASTEA ensures responsible competition practices by sefting up anti-corruption strategies through the
CEMASTEA Corruption Prevention Commitiee, responsible political involvement, fair competition and
respect for competitors.

I Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations
CEMASTEA maintains good business practices, treats its own suppliers responsibly by henouring contracts
amd respecting payment timelines.

c. Responsible marketing and adverfisement
All CEMASTEA advertisements are done through the Government Advertising Agency or the Public
Procurement Information Portal as a measure of ensuring responsible and transparency in advertiscment.
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iy Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) gives an opportunity to contribute in giving back 1o
the society. Aligning with CEMASTEA’s mandate to provide training and research, the
Centre’s CSR activilies are a tool to help create awareness of its brand and programmes
and put a smile on the faces of learners, teachers in schools and the community at large
through donations towards improving Mathematies and Science. During the FY 202272023,
CEMASTEA engaged in the CSR activities as below;

i. Tree seedling donations
During the FY 2022-2023, CEMASTEA donated a total of 9,693 tree seedlings 1o schools and the

community as parl of efforts to increase the percentage of tree cover in the country and lessen the

devastating impacts of ¢limate change.

Ematetei secondary lkonyero secondary

Kilimo Girls' Shitoli Secondary
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St. John's Christosom Kudho Keriko High Schoal

Larmudiac High School Mau Narok Secondary
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Machakos Township Secondary

Donations of items: Hospitality Department
The deparfment donated firewood, old curtains, mosquito nets and bed sheets to Shades children's

home Rirula

Donations of items: STEM Department
1. Mt. Kinangop Girls were supported with three trophies on 15/7.2023

2. Kapngetuny secondary supported with the Physics Kits on 14th March 2023

3. AIC Samioei model school with the 2 Physics Kits on 14th March 2023

4. Shimo la Tewa Borstal Secondary Mombasa supported with one Mobile laboratory bench and
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mathematics models on 9th February 2023

3. 1) Kanjwang Mathare North Secondary supported with one mobile laboratory bench and
mathematics models on 26th July 2022

6. Aquinas High secondary supported with one Physics Kits on 13th July 2023

7. Witn Mjini secondary school Lamu supported with one Mobile Laboratory Bench and
mathematies models on 8th July 2023
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11.  Report of the Board of Governors
The Board of Governors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the
yedr ended June 30, 2023, which show the state of the centre’s affairs.

i) Principal activities
The principal mandate of CEMASTEA is to provide continuous professional development of
teachers in STEM Education.

i) Results
The results of the Centre for the vear ended 30 June, 2023, are set out on pages 1-22.

iii) Board of Governors
The members of the Board of Governors who served during the year are shown on page vii-x.
During the year 2023, Andrew Rukaria resigned and no other member was appointed.

iv)  Surplas remission
In accordance with Regulation 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management (Mational Governmient)
Regulations, regulatory entities shall remit into the Consolidated Fund, ninety per cent of its surplus
funds reported in the audited financial statements after the end of each financial year,
The CEMASTEA iz not a regulator or category three (3) hence this does not apply 1o the Centre.

v) Auditors
The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of the centre in accordance with Article
279 of the Canstitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015,
By Qrder of the Board

Neme D4 278 AolonTsn

Corporation Secretary/Secretary to the Board
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12, Statement of Directors Responsibilities

section 81 of the Public Finance Management Aet, 2012, section 14 of the State Corporations Act
and legal notice ne.96 require the board of governors to prepare financial statements in respect of
that centre, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the centre af the énd of the
financial year/period and the operating results of the centre for that year/period. The board of
govemors are also required to ensure that the centre keeps proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the centre the board of governors are also

responsible for safeguarding the assets of the cenire

The board of governors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the centre’s financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the eentre for and as at the end of
the financial year (period) ended on 30 June, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i) Maintaining
adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective
throughout the reporting period; (i) Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy al any time the financial position of the centre; {iit) Designing, implementing
and maintaining intemal eontrols relevunt to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due (o error or
fraud; (iv) Safeguarding the assets of the centre; (v) Selecting and applying appropriate aceounting
policies; and (vi) Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances,

The Board of govemors aceept responsibility for the centre’s financial statements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the
manner required by the PFM Act, 2012, the State Corperations Act and legal notice 9. The Board of
governors are of the opinion that the centre’s financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of centre’s transactions during the financial year ended 30 June, 2023, and of the centre’s financial
position as at that date. The Board .of govemors further confirms the completeness of the accounting
records maintained for the centre, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the centre's
financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control,

In preparing the financial statements, the board of governors have assessed the centre's ahility to

continte as i going concern.
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Mothing has come 1o the attention of the board of governors to indieate that the centre will not

remain a going concem for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement,

Approval of the financial statements

The cenire'’s financial statements were approved by the Board on DE -© 5" 2023 and
signed on its behall by:

—
Name JACI~Th Aparten

W

Accounting Officer
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13.  Report of the Independent Auditor for the Financial Statements of CEMASTEA
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

Telephame: +154420] 3214000 HEADQUARTERS
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reuhsite: wavw.cagkenyva. go.ke . Marnirovia Street

QFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL POk Box 30084-00100

Eihnredng A conmie i NAIROE

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON CENTRE FOR MATHEMATICS, SCIENCE
AND TECHNOLOGY EDUCATION IN AFRICA FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A, Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazetie notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are. applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to  ensure that the
Government achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the
intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that itz internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed al addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Fublic Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015, The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General,

REPORT OM THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Centre for Mathematics,
Science and Technology Education in Africa set out on pages 1 to 46, which comprizse of
the statemenl of financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended and a summary of

Roport of the Awditor-Coneral on Cenire for Mathemarics, Setence and Techmology Education in Afvica for the vear
eneled 30 Sune, 2023



significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. | have obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of my
knowledge and belief, ware necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effacts of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Centre for Mathematics, Science and Technology
Education in Africa as at 30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting
Standards {(Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Long Outstanding Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs 60,619,870 as disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements. Included
in the balance is an amount of Kshs. 4 985 350 comprising Kshs.2,451,500 owed by
Teachers Service Commission and an amount of Kshs.2,533,850 owed by Meru
University of Science and Technology that has been outstanding for a period of over
two (2) years. Itis not clear what action or measures the Management has taken to collect
the long outstanding amount.

In the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and recoverabillity of the receivables
from exchange transachions balance of Kshs.4,985,350 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducled in accordance with the International Standards for Supreme
Audit Institutions (ISSAls). | am independent of the Centre for Mathematics, Science and
Technology Education in Africa Management in accordance with 155Al 130 on the Code
of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAl and in
accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial
statements in Kenya. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters in
the year under review,

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Aricle 229(8) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, | confirm that nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Riport of the Auditor-General ow Centrg for Mathematics, Science and Technology Educarion in Africa for the year
anded 30 June, 2023
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Basis for Conclusion

LS

The audit was conducted in accordance with 1SSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements comply in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them.
| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my conclusion,

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, | confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
beliave that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAls 2315 and 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Governors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards {Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal contrels as the Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall govemnance.

in preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Centre's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unkess

Management is aware of the intention o terminate the Centre's or cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way. -

Report of the Auditor-General on Cenire for Mathematics, Science and Technology Edwcation in Afiica for the year
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The Board of Governars is responsible for overseeing the Centre's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effeciiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensunng that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance

and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or &ITor,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 228(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance iz a high level of assurance, but
Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or eror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit iz planned and
performed fo express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way in accordance with the provisions of Article 228(8) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 228(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7 ) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non- compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to fulure peripds are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with 1SSAls. | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

Report of the Auditor-General on Cemre for Mathematics, Science and Technology Education tn Africa for the year
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+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the applicabie basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Centre’s
ability to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Centre fo cease fo
continue to sustain its services.

» FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and- whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Centre to express an opinion on the financiai statements.

« Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Nairobi

03 Aprit, 2024
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Centre for Mathematics, Science and Technology Education in Africa (

Annual Report and Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June, 2023

CEMASTEA)

14. Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2023
Description Note (8) FY 2022/2023 | FY 2021/2022(Restated)
Revenue. from non-exchange Kshs Kshs
transactions
Government Grants 979,681,666 947,938,975
Partner Funds 10,438,397 385,201
Total revenue 990,120,063 968,324,176 '
Revenue from exchange transactions h
Rendering of services 8 27,968,400 5,637,525
Interest Income 9 60,213 12,064
Other Income 10 1,947,498 2,043,100
Total revenue from exchange 20,976,111 7,692,689
transactions
Total revenue 1,020,096,174 976,016,865
Expenses
Training‘;'—'iNSET 11 544,840,864 608,467,839
Employee costs 12 53,820,662 62,345,780
Repalirs and maintenance I3 21,812,619 15,253,377
Use of Goods & Services 14 102,205,090 89,687,724
Board expenses 15 15,670,773 -
Audit, Consultancy & Legal 16 2,851,065 5,861,218
Bank Charges 17 707,455 125,348
Depreciation 18 38446272 31,662,028
Total expenses 780,354,800 §14,103,314
.Surplus for the period 239,741,374 161,913,551

The notes set out on pages 7 to 45 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. The Financial

Statements set out on pages 1 to 5 were signed on behalf of the board of geve

ors by:

gk
Name: OPNCend Tl ken7yp Name: e podt $i1H

T ELERLEY]

Head of Finance

ICPAK M/No: 4121
. ; S o .

Date 43 O 2R Date 7.7 - B2.a0x*  Date

Accounting Officer






 Centre for Mathematics, Science and Technology Education in Africa (CEMASTEA)
Annual Report and Financial Statements
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15. Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023

= FY 202152022
Deseription Note (5) FY 2022/2023 (Restated)
Kshs Kshis

Assels

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 19 252,783,125 138,047,622
Receivables from exchange a0 60,519,970 12,631,197
tramsactions

Total Current Assets 313,303,005 150,678,819
MNon-current assels

Property, plant and equipment 2l a 1,107,829,022 1,043,601,731
Intangible assets 21h 11,715,326 1,653,016

Total non - current assets 1,119,544 348 1,045 254,747
Total asseis 1,432,847 443 1,195.933,560
Current liabilities

Trade and other p:g:.-*abl:n from 22 5,075,564 7.903 061

exchange ransachions

Total current labilitics 5.075,564 7,503,061
Net assels

Revaluation Reserves 23a 185,642,480 385,642,480

Accumulated Feserves 23b 402,003,399 |62, 262,025
Capital reserves 13 640, 1 26,000 640,126,000
Total nel azsets 1,427.771,879 1,158,030,505
Total net assets and liabilities 1,432.847,443 195,933,566

The financial statements set out on pages 1 to 5 were signed on behalf of the board of gé

et LBRedusle

Name | AC:nTA Adcately  Name T Nam |

Accounting Officer Head of Finance q‘ |y Chairgijan of 1 ¢ Board B
ICPAK Member Number:

Date 22 Da.202¥, Date Q3 b3 -2024  Date 2% 037
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16. Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 30 June 2023

T Revaluation Accomulated -

Deseription Capital reserve <ilocon Surplus Fotal
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kxhs

As at July 1, 2021 G40, 1 20, D) JE5,642 480 348,474 1,026,1 16,954

Surphus! deficit for the year

(Restated) 3 61,913,551 161,913,551

As at Jume 30, 2022

(Restated) i, 1 26,000 3RS 642,480 162,262,025 1, 188,030,505

As at July 1, 2022 Gk, 1 243, 0000 J85,642 480 162,262,025 LIB8030,505

Surplus/ deficit for the year = - 239741374 230741 374

As at June 30, 2023 640,126,000 JR5,0d 2 450 02,003,399 1.427,771,879
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17. Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2023

period

Description Mote FY 202272023 | FY 202172022 (Restated)

_ Kshs Kshs
Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus / Deficit for the period 139,741,374 | 161,913,551
Adjustimenis for |
Depreciation 18 38,446,272 31,662,028
[nerease/Docrease on recéivables 20 {d?,!i[l__ﬂ_._?‘j:]} Ti0.433
Inicrease/Decrease on payables 22 (2,827,497) (4,385,268)
Net cash flows from operating aclivities 227471376 159,920,744
Cash Oows [rom investing activities
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and
intangible assets 5 21 (112,735,873) (BD.918.412)
Net cash flows used in investing aclivities (112,735,873} (80,918,4120
Cash flows Meom financing activities B )
Net cash flows used in financing activities . i
Net increase/{decrense) in cash and cash
it 114,735,503 I{rﬂ.ﬂﬂzjﬂl
E::ill;dmrd cash equivalents at the beginning of 19 138,047,622 26,045,290
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 152,783,125

138,047,622




B LIT'vot's ELRCELTIN NI B 000 000°S OO0 000 BT L ammppuadyy pmypde)
g1z 2 FLETPLGET OO0 0008 ET = 000°000°011 pottad agg 2oy snjding
I STSEYTIT | 008 PSE08L S60"0SR'T68 D [Tr— aanppuadxy prioy
<6 1SE'LR1°] G1OTITIZ Won00Ee b et aouBGANIEN pife seday
b 660 T61 ELLOLYST o i bl - ek g3l SIOIRUIC] 10 LOHBISUNITY
L8 RECBLIS | T99°0Z8'CS 900:000'Z5 . 000°000°Z9 s1900 900idurg
'8 oerocszo] | 2L 050°6R9 QTTLBE 16L (ECSCI0°19) | 6PLOD0ESE SSIAIIS PUE SPOOD) 3O 357)
sasuadxy
]
tot BLONTS |y, rosouort $60°058'010°T CEE0ET | gcomront T
L6 LRL'T 1209 000°ze UR-E2 e L] 3oURD) g
oh1 (86 C09) SV LEET 000" FHE ] £ 0007 FeE [ —
] r ] 1y - " . [

w1 (ZOE+ESS) OGH 05 LT 260761 GO CLRL TE0695°11 e —"
ol (L65°8ER) L66'9EH 0l 000 0000 000°000°¢ 0000005 spuny st
001 bR LE 999°1 8966 000°000°086 (695°056'89) | 6957056 FHO' S SIUSWILISAOD)
B IR W] SIajsUB |
INUIANY

0012/ P=) (p-2)=3 p {q+®)=]) q ™

S S5y S5y b L | A
UOREIIIN | 220D steed apqeaed mos uonpdirasag
0 a5, IIURTLIONID ] o [EmY 1waEpng ety siwamnsalpy | jaBpng peardug

ETOT AUNL g PIPUa 1E34 2 J0f sjunowE Enldy puk 13png jo nosurdmos) jo W8S "¢

£T0T "2unp gf PIPUd JEIA A J0j

SIUIWAELS [eRuRUlg pue Lioday] [Enuuy
(VALSVINAD) EdLpy ul uonjeanpy ASojouyss 1 PUE 32UMIT SIJEMAGIETA] JOT 211UI




oA # jo uondiosqe
MO] S0t SIRNGSI YH JO [ecadde U1 AB|9p pue £20Z-TT0T A 9 ULLWS O USHUME Seat 3101 1502 Juawdopdurg £
-sseaosdde padejap 01 9np 1w o0 sem 38 Suruten s anued 1] yauessay % Buiurel] z
Y U 352001 341 20Uy £ZOT/TTOT EAA [ERURUY FuLnp vHISVINGD
1& PiOL] SBAL T8N SILLALIYE UDIIBINPS 30§ SAHIUINHD Ayred Suryios penuspisaad syl anp stasu L santades Junapusy 1
suopeurdxy s oS
{44011 2AOGE PUE %406 MO[3q 371} S3aURUIRA J0{EW Sy e BUlwo[|o) 3y 1
Sou UG
0T uUnp (f papud Jeai 3y 10)

SJUIMNELS [RipuEwl] pus odayy Enouy
(VALSYINTD) 83113y Ul wopeanpy ASopouyda | puE 2UMNIS ‘SINEWI B J0] 3IJUITY




Centre for Mathematics, Science and Technology Education in Africa (CEMASTEA)
Annual Report and Financial Statements

Creneral Information

Centre for Mathematics, Science and Technology Education in Africa (CEMASTEA) is.a siate
corporation under Ministry of Education Science and Technotogy, State Depariment of Barly Leaming
ind Basic Education formed under legal notice noc96 of 2006 The principal activity of the Centre is
carrying out Iraining and research

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment,
marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated
recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of cstimates and assomptions, 1t also requires management
to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Centre's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5 of these financial statements.
The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of the Centre, The financial statements have been prepared
in aceordance with the PFM Act, the State Corporations Act, legal notice no.96: of 2006, and
Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted
have been consistently applied to all the vears presented,
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3. Adoption of New and Revised Standards
i New and anended standards and imterpretations in fuswe effective in the year ended 30

June 2023.

IPSAS 41: | Applicable: 1¥ January 2023;

Financial The objective of 1PSAS 41 is to establish principles for the
[nstruments financial reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will

present relevant and useful information to users of financial
ctatements for their assessment of the amounts, timing amd
uncertainty of a Centre's future cash flows.

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful
information than IPSAS 29, by:

« Applying a single classification and measurement model

for financial assels that considers the characteristics of
the asset’s cash flows and the objective for which the
gssel is held;

« Applying a single forward-looking expected credit oss
model that is applicable to all financial instruments
subject to impairment testing: and

« Applving an improved hedge accounting maodel that
bicadens the hedging arrangements in scope of the
puidance. The model develops a strong link between an
Centre’s risk management strategies and the accounting
treatment for instruments held as part of the risk
management stralegy.

This stemdard does mot have significant impact 1o the Centre.
IPSAS 42: Social | Applicable: 1% January 2023
Benefits The objective of this Stndard is to improve the relevance,

faithful representativeness and comparability of the information
that a reporting Centre provides in its financial statements about
social benefits. The information provided should help users of the
financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess;

{a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Centre.

B
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{b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit
schemes; and
{ch The impeet of such social benefits provided on the Centre’s
financial performance, financial position and cash flows.
This standard does not have significant impact 1o the Centre,
Amendments  to | Applicable: 1st January 2023:
Other IPSAS a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related

resulling from to the components of borrowing costs which were
IPSAS 41, inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was fssued.

Financial b} Amendments to  IPSAS 30, regarding  illustrative
Instruments examples on hedping and credit risk which wene

madvertenily omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

¢) Amendments o IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for
accounting for financial guaranteed contracts which were
inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on
classifying financial instruments on initial adoption of
accrual basis IPSAS which were insdveriently omitted
when IPSAS 41 way issued,

These amendments do not have significent fmpect to the Centre.

Other Applicable 1 January 2023
improvements o | e [PS4S 22 Disclosure of Finaneiol Information abont the
[PSAS Ceneral Crovermment Sector. Amendments to refer to the

latest System of Mational Accounts (SNA 2008).

o [PSAS 390 Employer Bemefits. Now deletes the term
composite social security benefits as it is no longer defined in
IPSAS.

* IPSAS 2% Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. Standard no longer included in the 2023
IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by TPSAS 41 which
is applicable from 1" Janwary 2023,

These improvemenis do not kave sigrificant impact to the Centre.
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Notes fo the Financial Statements (Continued)

il

i,

New and amended standards and interpreiations fn issue but not yef effective in the year
emvded 30 June 2023,

IPSAS 43 | Applicable 1* Janwary 2025
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that
lessees and lessors provide relevant information in & manner that
faithfully represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for
users of financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the
financial position, financial performance and cashflows of an Centre.,

The new standard requires entities fo recognise, measure and present
information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.
This standard does not have significant impact to the Cenfre,

IPSAS 44: | Applicable I* January 2025 N

Mon- Current | The Standard requires,

Assets Held | Assels that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

for Sale and | measured at the lower of camying amount and fair value less costs to sell

Discontinued | and the depreciation of such assets to coase and:

Operations | Asscts that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to b
presented separately in the statement of financial position and the results
of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of
financial pesformance.

This stendard does not have significant impact fo the Centre.
Early adoption of standards

The Centre did not carly — adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year or

the eentre adopted the following standards eavly (siate the standards, reaszon far early

adoption and impact on centre s firancial statemernts.}
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P Il kil e . T AR e

Notes to the financial statements {mﬁﬁ.n.m:di
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) HRevenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange {ransactions
During the reporting period, no revenue was received under this category otherwise the
Centre would have recognized revenues from fees; taxes and fines when the event cecurs
and the assel recognition criteria are mel, To the cxtent that there is a related condition
attached that would give rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income is
recognized instead of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is
probable that the future cconomic benefits or service potential associated with the asset
will flow to the Centre and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Transfers from ofher government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured st
fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and
property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic
benefits or service polential related to the asset will flow to the Centre and can be
measured reliably. To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give
rise 10 a liability to repay the amount, the amount is recorded in the statement of financial
position and realised in the statement of financial performance over the useful life of the
assets that has been acquired using such funds.

i} Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services

The Centre recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of
completion when the sutcome of the transection can be estimated reliably, The stage of
completion is measured by réference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of
total estimated labour hours. Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably,
revenue is recognized only 1o the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued) :

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b)

Sale of poods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
awnership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods amnd when the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will low Lo the Centre,

Interest income

Interest income is acorued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount, The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding 1o determing

interest income each period.

Dividends
Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the sharcholder's or the Centre’s
right to receive payments is established.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for ona

straight-ling basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

Budget information
The original budget for the Current FY was approved by the National Assembly on Junc
2022, Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in
aecardance with specific approvals as appropriate. The additional appropriations are added to
the original budget by the Centre upon receiving the respective approvais in order (o
conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the Centre recorded additional appropriations of Ksh
20.976.111 on the FY 202272023 budget following the National Treasury approval,

12
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Notes to the Financial Statements {(Continued)

Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continued)
Budget information (continued)
The Centre's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed

in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a
classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas
the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from
the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation: 1o be on the same basis as the
approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to
the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts. In addition to the Basis differcnee, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are
also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of

the financial statements and the approved budget,

Taxes

Current income fax

Current income tax assets and labilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
1o be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the area
where the Centre operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax relating 1o items
recognized direetly in net assets is recognized in net assets and not in the statement of financial
performance. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and  establishes

provisions where appropriate,

13
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Notes to the Financial Statements Emned]
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences hetween the tax bases
of asgets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date. Deferred tax liabilities are recopnized for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect
of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the liming of the reversal of the temporary difTerences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets are recopnized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognized Lo the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temparary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused fax losses can be
utilized, except in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
controlled entities, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only
to the extent that it is probable that the temparary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences ¢an be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asscts is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax assel to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-asscised at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assel to be recovered, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deficit is
recognized outside surplus or deficit, Deferred tax items are recognized in corrclation to the
underlying transaction in net assels. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities are offset if a
legatly enforceabile right cxists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and

the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable Cerre and the same taxation authority.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Contin ued)

Sales tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, excepl:

i) When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is nol recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

i} When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included
The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the laxation authority is

included as pant of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

¢} Invesimenti property

The centre did not have investment property during the financial year 20222023
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
d)  Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly atiributable to the sequisition of
the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required 1o be replaced
al intervals, the Centre recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific uscful lives and
depreciates them accordingly, Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
surplus or deficit as incurred. Wheere an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil
af nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its far value,
Depreciation
The Centre applies reducing balance depreciation policy, Freehold land is not depreciated.
Depreciation on all other assets is calculited on the reducing balance basis method to write
down the cost each asset 1o s residual value over its estimated useful life using the

foollowing annual rates:

Buildings 2%

Furmniture & Fittings 12.5%
Motor Vehicles 25%
Computer software 20% and;
Equipment 12.5%.

e} Lenses

Finance leases are leases that transfier substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item to the Centre. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at
the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, If lower, at the
present value of the future minimum lease payments. The Centre also recognizes the
associated lease lability st the inception of the lease. The liability recognized is measured as
the present vilue of the future minimum lease payments at initial recognition. Subsequent 1o
initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of
the lease liability 50 as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability, Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit. An asset held

under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. Howoever, if there is no
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reasonable certainty that the Centre will obtain nwm:fs_ﬁip?llle asset l:ry the end of the lease
term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the

lease term,

(Operating leases are leases that do not trensfer substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental 1o ownership of the leased item to the Centre. Operating lease payments are
recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease

term,
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
i Intangible asseils
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost, The cost of intangible
assets acquired in-a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried &t cost less any accumulated
amorfization and accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are nol capitilized and expenditure is reflected in
surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the
intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life are assessed for impairment at each reporting date,

2) Research and development costs
The Centre expenses rescarch costs as incurred. Developmient costs on an individual project
are recognized as intangible assets when the Centre can demonstrate:

i) The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available

for use or sale.

i) Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset.

{ii) How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

iv) The availability of resources to complete the asset,

v} The ability 1o measure reliably the expenditure during development.
Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when
development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of
expected Tuture benefit, During the periad of development, the asset is tested for impairment

annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

h) Financial instraments

IPSAS 41 addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for
financial assets. The centre does not have any hedge relationships and therefore the new hedge
accounting rules have no impact on the Company’s financial slaternents.) A financial instrument is
any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one centre and a Tinancial liability or equity
nstrument of another centre. At initial recognition, the centre measures a financial asset or
financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial Hability
not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability,

a) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

The centre classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the centre’s
management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset. A financial assel is measured a1 amortized cost when the financial asset is held
within a management medel whose objective is to hold financial asséts in order fo collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financinl assel give rise on specified dates
o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. A
financial asset is measured al fair value through nel assets’ equity if it is held within the
management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows and
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that ave solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus or deficit unless it is
measured al amortized cost or fair value through net assets! equity unless an centre has made

irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity instruments.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subszequent mersurement

Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the centre ¢lassifies its financial
assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair
value are presented in either suplus or deficit or through net assets” equity subject to cerlain

criteria being met.

Amaortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated al fair value through
surplus or deficit, are messured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that is
subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in
profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired, Interest income from these financial

assets 15 included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through net assets! equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deficit. Interest income from

these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method,

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables arc recopnized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible
amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An
estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on & review of all outstanding amounts at the year

end.

20



Centre for Mathematics, Science and Technology Education in Africa (CEMASTEA)
Annual Report and Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June, 2023,
Notes to the Financial Statements (Confinued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not meet the eriteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets’
equity are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the centre
manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of the

assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model,

Impairment

The centre ussesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss (BCL") associated with
its financial assets carvied at amortized cost and fair value through net assetsfequity. The centre
recognizes a loss allowance for such Josses at each reporting date. Critical estimates and significant
judgments made by management in determining the expected eredit loss (ECL) are set out in Note
15

i) Financial liabilities

Classification
The centre classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for financial

liahilities measured through profit or loss.

i} Inventories
During the financial year the centre did not have inventory otherwise the inventory would have
been measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received through
non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory: is its fair
value at the date of acquisition. Costs ineurred in bringing sach product to its present location and
conditions are accounted for, as follows:
i) Raw maierials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.
it} Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and 3 proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excleding borrowing
04,
Afller initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value,
However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement
cost, Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course al operations, less the

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 1o make the sale, exchange, or
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Summary of Significant Aceounting Policies (Continued

distribution, Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for wtilization or
consumplion in the ordinary course of operations of the Centre,

i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Cenire has a present obligation (legal or construclive) as a
result of & past cvent, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or
service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amourit of the obligation. Where the Centre expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for
example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recopnized as a separate asset only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to any provision is presented in
the statemvent of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

k) Social Benefits

Social benefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that meet
the eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects of social risks and iii) Address the need of sociely as a
whole. The centre recognises & social benefit as an expense for the social benefit scheme at the
same time that it recognises a liability, The liability for the social benefit scheme is measured at
the best estimate of the cost {the social benefit payments) that the centre will incur in fulfilling the
present obligations represented by the liability.

I} Contingent liabilities
The Centre does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any contingencies in
the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits or service potential is remote.

m) Contingent assels

The Centre does not recognize a contingent assct but discloses details of a possible asset whose
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Centre in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent
assets are assessed continually 1o énsure that developments are appropriately reflected in the
financial statements, If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or
service potential will arise and the asset’s value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related
revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change oceurs.

.2
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
n) Mature and purpose of reserves
The Centre creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements: During the reporting
pericd the centre held revaluation reserve, accumulated reserve and capital reserves,
i, Revaluation Reserve- this is maintained to capture gains on revaluation i, when the fair
value is higher than book value,
ti.  Capital Reserve- this is maintained as a reserve to finance capital projects and write off
capital expenses,
. Accumulated Reserves- this is maintained as a reserve to write off deficits, reserve surplus.

o} Changes in accounting policies and estimates
The Centre recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively, The effects of
changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively iF retrospective application is impractical.

p) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

The Centre provides retirement benefits for its employees and board of povemors, Defined
comribution plans: are post-employment benefit plans under which a Centre pays lixed
contributions into a scparate Centre (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets 10 pay all employee benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund abligations
for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the vear in which they
become payable. Defined benefit plans are post-employment beriefit plans other than defined-
contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valoed tri-annually on the projected
unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased
future contributions on proportional basis to all panticipating employers. The contributions and
lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation,
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Summary of Significant Aceounting Policies (Continued

q) Foreign corrency transactions

Tranzactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the
date of the transaction. Trade ereditors or debiors denominated in forgign currency are reported at
the staterent of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date.
Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as

income or expenses in the period in which they arise.
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Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continued)

) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs ave capitalized against qualifying assels as part of property, plant and equipment.
Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or
constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the
asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance,

8) HRelated parties

The Centre regards a related party as a person or-an Centre with the ability to exert control
individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Centre, of vice versa. Members
of key management are regarded as related partics and comprise the board of governors, the CEO
and senior managers. Other related party are Teacher's service commission (TSC) and Ministry of
Education (MOE)

t} Service concession arrangements

The Centre analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters in determining the
appropriate sccounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular, where a private party
contributes an asset to the arcangement, the Centre recognizes that asset when, and only when, it
controls or regulates the services the operator must provide together with the asser, to whom it
miust provide them, and at what price. In the case of assets other than “whole-oflife® assets, it
controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise — any significant residual interest
in the assel at the end of the amangement. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair
value: To the extent that an asset his been recognized, the Centre alse recognizes 4 corresponding
liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received,
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

n) Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on eall and
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various
commercial banks at the end of the financial year, For the purposes of these financial statements,
cash and cash equivalents also include shott term cash imprest and advances o authorised public
officers andfor institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial
year. The cenire has also disclosed the cash held by County Teacher Capacity Development
Committee at the county level.

v} Comparative figures
Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfipured to conform to the required changes in presentation.
w) Subsequent events

Thicre have been no events subsequent 1o the financial year end with a significant impact on the
financial statements for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Summary of Significant Aceounting Policies (Continued)
S Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uneertainty

The preparation of the Centre's financial statements in conformity with TPSAS reguires
management o make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
reVenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumplions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require o material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected

in fatwre periods. State all judgements, estimates and assumptions made:

Estimates and assom plions

The key assumplions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustiment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear, are described below. The Centre based iis
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements
wene prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may
change duc to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Centre. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they accur. IPSAS 1,140

Useful lives and residual value
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform
potential future use and value from disposal:

a) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experiz employid by the Centre.

b} The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes.

¢} The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed,

d} Availability of funding to replace the asset.

e} Changes in the market in relation 1o the asset
Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note 40, Provisions
are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to seitle the obligation

at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

27



Centre for Mathematies, Science and Technology Education in Africa (CEMASTEA)
Annual Report and Financial Statements

Motes to the Financial Statcments (Continued)

6. {a) Transfers from Other Government entities
Dezeription FY 2022/2023 FY 2021/2022
Grants From Ministry
 Kshs| Kshs
Recurrent Grants
150,361 066 BO624,975
Development Granis
" |2, 500, (000
SMASE Capifation
29,320,600 B74.814,000 |
Toial
979,681,666 067,938,975

During the financial year 2022/2023 centre received Ksh 150,361,066.00 as recurrent expenditure
for supporting operations and received Ksh §29,320,600.00 being capitation for training teachers in

STEM both national and county level and carrying out research on science subjects.

(b} Transfers from Minisivies, Departments and Agencies (MDAs)

Mame of The Cenire | Amount Amouni Amaount Total
Sending the Grant recognizeed  to | deferved | recognised | transfers Comparative
Sintenient of [ under in  capital | (Current FY | FY 202172022
Financial deferved | fund. I022202F)
performance, * ineme,
KShs KShs — KShs KShs
Ministry of Education 0GR G50 - - o079 6B 1 660 T SR 9T
Chleer
Ministries/departments - - - - -
Total TR 666 - = UT90eR1 6660 6T, 98,4975
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7. Transfers from Partners
Description FY 2022/2023 FY 202172022
KShs KShs
Transfers from Pariners
10,438,397 385,201
Tatal
10,438,397 385,201

The Centre received Ksh. 10,438,397 from Education Development Trist (EDT), Allan & Gray and
University of Waterloo. In the FY 202 /2022 the centre received Ksh, 385,201 from Allan & Gray.

8. Hevenue from exchange transactions, Catering and hospitality services
FY 2022/2023 FY 2021/2022
Deseripiion
KShs K8hs
Catering and hospitality 27,968,400 3,637,525
Total 27,968 400 5,637,515

This revenue is derived from sale of catering and hospitality services in the centre. There was
increase in the FY 2022/2023 due to hosting of presidential working party on education

i)
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9, Interest Income
FY 20227023 FY 2021/2022
Deseripiion
s KShs KShs
Interest Income
—— 60,213 12,064
Total finance income
- | 0,213 12,004

This revenue is fram interest on current accounts held al NCBA accounts both dollar and Ksh

1o, Other incomes
Description FY 202272023 FY 2021/2022
k. Shs kK Shs
Rental Income 1,019,000 1,830,150
Sundry Income U728, 498 212,950
Total other income 1,947,498 2.043,100

This is revenue derived from rent from staff houses at the centre and sundry income includes
revenue from hire of grounds and other miscellaneous income ¢.g. Sale of seedlings and disposal
of idbe assels,
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1. Training expenses
FY 20222023 FY 202172022 {Restated)
Description

K5hs K5hs

Capitation Expenditure (SMASE) 02,369,895 548,766,193
Training Materials (SMASE) | 264,185 G, 300000
Training Subsistence & Venue 128,059,652 38,474,316
NI3C expenses 13,147,131 14,926,320
Total Sd4. 840,864 608,467 839

i) SMASE expenditure - expenses incurred during training of teachers at county level an
S5TEM, Monitering and evaluation, rescarch and support.

i) Training subsistence & Venue- support to Mational Trainers to attend to trainings at county
level and venue {conference costs) for training.

iii) Outstanding Balances at the counties have been treated as receivables in FY 2021/2022 and

FY2022/2023

iv) MI3C expenses —These are expenses incurred 1o support MI3C office expenditure which
forms part of CEMASTEA budget , work plan and procurement plan
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12 Employment Costs (PE)
Description FY 2022/2023 FY 20212022
KShs KShs
Salaries for Staff on 3yr Contracts 300,544,650 29,080,676
Sataries for Staffon Lyr Conlracts
and Beloiw 13,861,121 1,984,081
NSSF Contribution Employer 997,920 1, (419,800
MITA Contribution 0,900 70,350
Giratuity £.346,031 21,200,873
Tutal 53,820,662 62,345,780
13. Repairs and Maintenance
Description FY 20222023 FY 202172023
KShs KShs
Buildings 10,373,869 6,304,661
Plant Machines and Equipment 7,569,833 5,056,084
Computer 1,291,771 476,000
Environmental Consérvations 330,048 128,083
Motor Vehicles 2,047,098 3,808,549
Total 21,812,619 15,953,377
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I4, Use of goods and services

- FY 2022/2023 FY 202172022 (Restated)

Kshs Kshs

.-'u:l*.r:rlisinﬁ_ 4,175,100 1,182,648
Food and Other 15,073,542 15,451,561
Fuel, Gas and il 11,229,925 5,864 484
Insurance 13,685,159 3,528,655
Internet Services 3,328,206 3,602 960
Office General Expenses 6,520,163 7050, 269
Postage & Courier 295,770 149,795
Printing and Stationery 4,234,874 1,625,400
Performance contracting - 11,538,250
Telephone expenses 228,000 [ 94,200
Travel and
Cleaning and security
skriices 9,060,920 12,311,024
Water &electricity 6,086,975 4,711,924
Staff Training & Welfare 12,581,047 7,439,580
Bereavement 1,394,500 i
Total 102,205,090 89,687,724
15, Board expenses

Deieriition 20222023 2021720

Kalis Kshs

Chairman/Directors’ Honoraria F.044,000 -

Sitting Allowances 1,360,000 .

Medical Insurance 2,000,000 -

Induction and I‘raininE__ 0.4 34 000 -
Oriler Allowances 832773

Tuatal 15,670,773
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16. Consultancy, Legal, Audit & Professional
FY 202272023 FY 20212022
Deseription
Kshs Kshs
Audit Fees 00,000 BO0,000
Consultancy& Legal 2,051,065 5,061,218
Total 2,851,065 5861,218
17. Bank Charges
Description FY 2022/2023 FY 202172022
Kshs | Kshs
Kenya Commercial Bank-
Operations 287210 68,201
I{en}'n"ﬁ:—mmm:aial Bank-
Capitation 373,389 35
_i’__‘,mpﬂ'ai;m Bank
7688 430
NCBA-Ksh.
= 27,219 10,689
NCBA-Dollar
2,325 =
Mational Bank
= 9,624 9,684
Mpesa Charges
: _ = 593
Total Bank Charges
707,455 125,348

The increase in bank charges is due o increase in number of transactions and introduction of

quick-pay system in KCB accounts.

15. Depreciation of assets
FY 202272023 FY 202172022
Description
Kshs Kshs
Property Plant and Equipment 35,517,441 31,248,773
Intangible asscts 2,928,831 413,254
Total 38,446,272 31,662,027
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14, (a) Cash & Bank
FY 202272023 FY 202172022
inii
Pescxipton Kshs Kshs
Current Account 252, TRR. 126 [38,047 622
Savings Account - -
On - Call Deposits - -
Fixed Deposits Account . -
Staff Car Loan/ Mortgage - -
{ithers (Specify) . -
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 152,783,126 138,047,622
(b} Details of Cash &Bank

Degeription ACCOUNT NO. FY 2022/2023 | FY 202172022
Ksh Kshs.

KCB-Karen ~Operating | 106974328 1,720,388 13,852,646
KCB-Karen Capitation 1211982815 202009614 | 105,785,184
Co-operative Bank IR 126637100 36,011,905 16,365,243
NCBA-Kes 10021 12589 5,024,076 48,535
NCBA-Dollar 100281 G608 6,922 056 291,303
Mational Bank G102 205486100 FLO05 08T 1,104,711
Taotal 252,783,126 | 138,047,622

During the FY 2022/2023, the Centre disbursed various funds to County Teacher Capacity
Development Committees, (CTCDC), in the Counties for Tescher teaining. Due to delay in
implementation of the trainings,) the CTCDC held Ksh.38, 530,800.60 as at 30 June, 2023 as per
bank certificates. of balance. These balances have been treated as receivables which will be utilised
to carry out the Trainings in FY 2023/2024. See appendix VI pages 5% and 57
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20, {a) Receivables from exchange transactions

Description FY 202272023 FY 202172022 (Restatod)

KShs KShs
Catering receivables 19,484,050 6,586,350
Rent receivables 292,761 1,351,219
Capitation receivables 38,530,801 4693608
Prepayment 2212,359 -
Total receivables 60,519,970 12,631,197

|. The outstanding receivables are majorly from Ministry of Education and Teachers
Service Commission. The management is following up on the outstanding receivables.

2. Crustanding balances at the counties have been treated as receivables in FY 202172022
and FY 2022/2023

(b} Aging of Receivables from exchange transactions

FY 202252023 FY 20212022 { Restabod
Descripiion ¢ )
Kshs Kshs
Current FY 5 of the total Cmuﬁ:ﬂtiﬁ
Less than | year S4.66HE. 855 o0 12,631,197
Between 1= 2 years 5B51.011 I -
Between 2-3 years = % =
Cwer 3 years - - -
Total (ath) 60,519,970 1040 12,631,197
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21. (2) Trade & Other payables
FY 20222023
Deseription FY 2021/2022
Kshs
Trade payables 4,275,564 7,103,061
Other payables-audit fees 800,000 00,000
Total trade and other payables 5075504 7,903,851
(b Aging analysis of Trade Payahlex
¥ - ‘-
Ageing nnalysis: {Trade and other payables) | Cuwrrent FY % of the Total Ca i
FY
Under one year 5075 504 1007 T.3,.061
[-2 years * = 3
2-3 years = 5
Chver 3 years - g
Total (ti¢ to above tofal) 5075,504 7003, 061
212. a) Property, plant &equipment
Deseription lands Buibdings Equipment | Mator Vehicles Fw!:i“i.nﬂﬁ:-“‘ Total
Kshs Fahx IKshs Kshs Kshs
i 0.00% 2.000% 1250% | 2se0% 12.50%,
COSTIVALUATI
O
As ab M0 Jume FHAY | 3E5642000 G306, 150,070 563946, 109 17849000 RR9,511 b4, 737,069
Addjmetments
T -
b 722,500 | 49076188 | 1345976 | 99944733
A5 Ak 30 Jine
1023 3EEE42.000 EIBIBNE4E | 185 ATLI0T 117,649,000 AL3NTART | 1344482452
DEFRECIATION:
As at 30 June 2027 | BISSTRE0 [ 24,084,308 TR0, 959 14,361,806 | 200,135,969
Charges for ihe 12496476 | 10,177,247 9,671,760 3ATIOS | 38517440
:"‘;:,_‘:J' Cal ) 98784045 | 34231571 58,633,710 19033775 | 236,653,410
MET BOOK,
VALLIE:
As ol 30 hune 2022 | 384,542,000 STR600210 | 32,341,765 38,687,047 143200695 | 1,043,600,751
;’f!;'”"““ XN 642,000 9627308 | 70,240,726 10,015,281 BI0NTIZ | 1,107 829,022

Land and buildings were valued on 2013 and the centre has written to Ministry of lands to do a

second revaluation
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b, Intangible assets

FY 202272023 FY 2021/2022
Nesctiptioa Khs Kshs
Cost at beginning of the year 3,159,085 3,159,085
Additions during the year 12.991,140 -
Cost at the end of the year 16,150,225 3,159,085
Amortization at the beginning of : 5
fise sieme 1,506,068 1,092 812
Amortization during the year 2,928,431 413,254
Amortization at the end of the year 4,434,899 | 506,069
MNet book value 11,715,326 1,653,016
23, Heserves
Mote. 3. Raserves! et | ZiaHevaluation 23h. Acconsuluted Suvplus 13e, Capital Reserves
Assels FUSEFVE
Kshs Kshs Hihs
As at Jaly 1, 2021 385 42 450 348,474 iy, 1 26,006
Sueplus’ deficit for the
| year - 161,913,551
A oal June M, 2632 IRS.642 ARD T62 262025 G, D26, 000
As at July 1, 2022 NS 642 450 162,262,025 640,126,000
Sumplasf deficit for the
venr - 239,741,374 :
Adal June 30, 2025 IB5641 480 JOZ 003309 G401 26,000
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24, Financial Risk Managemen!

The Centre's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks
and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Centre’s overall risk management programme
focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business envirpoment and seeks to minimise the
potential advense effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The
Centre does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to
customers with an established credit history. The Centre’s financial fsk management objectives
and policies are detailed below:

i) Credit risk

The Centre has exposure 1o eredit risk; which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with
banks, as well as tmde and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.
Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial position,
past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or extemal
assessment in accordance with limits set by the board of governors. The amounts presented in the
statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the
Centre’s management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic

environment,

Financial Risk Managemend
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
Centre’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking sccount of the value of any collateral
obtained is made up as follows:

(NB: The tatals colums showld tie to the individual elements af credit risk disclosed in the Cemre's
statemer of financial position).
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Financial Risk Management

The custamers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue trading.
The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible
armounts that the Centre has recognised in the financial statements is considered adequate Lo cover
any potentially imecoverable amounts. The Centre has significant concentration of credit risk on
amounts due from xxx. The board of board of governors sets the Centre’s credit policies amd
objectives and lays down parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management

are operated.

i} Liguidity risk management

Uiltimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Centre’s board of govermars,
who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework, for the management of the
Centre’s shod, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Centre
manages ligquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows. The table
below représents cash flows payable by the Centre under non-derivative financial liabilities by
their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying

halances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

As at 30™ June FY 202202023

Trade payables 5,075,564 . -
Current portion of borrowings - - f
Provisions - - !
Deferred income - " i

Employee benefit obligation - i [

Tatal 575,564

As at 30 June FY 2021/2022
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Trade payables 7,903,061 =

Current portion of boerrowings . -

Provisions = -

Deferred income = .

Employee benefit obligation = =

Total 7,903,061

I
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Financial Risk Management

iii) Market risk

The Centre has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the
Centre on an on-going basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal
sccounting and operational controls, Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices,
such as interest rate, equity prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the Centre’s income
or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk cxposurés within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management
Committee. The Centre's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subjeot to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committes)
and for the day-lo-day implementation of these policies. There has been no change to the Centre’s
exposure to market risks or the way it manages and measures the risk.

a) Forcign currency risk

The Centre has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of goods
and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices denominated in
foreign currencies arc paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and conversion al the time of
payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate. The Centre manages foreign exchange risk
form fulure commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities by projecting for
expected sales proceeds and matching the same with expected payments,
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Financial Risk Management

The carrying amount of the Centre’s foreign currency denominated monetary asscts and monctary
liabilitics at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

b} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Centre's financial condition may be adversely. affected as a
resull of changes in interest rte levels, The Centre's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits,
This exposes the Centre to cash flow interest rate risk, The interest rate risk exposure arises mainly

from interest rate movements on the Centre’s deposits,

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that offir

favourable interest rates,

Financial Risk Management
iv) Capital Risk Management
The objective of the Centre’s capital risk management is to safeguard the Centre's ability to con

linue a5 & going concern. The Centre capital structure comprises of the following funds:

FY 2022720203 FY 202152022
Dreseriplion
Kshs Kshs

Revaluption Reserve 385,642 480 385642 480
Retained Eamings 402,003,399 162 263 024
Capital Reserve G40, 1 26,000 Gt 1206, D
Total Funds 1.427,771,879 1. 188 020,505
Total Bormowings = =
Less: Cash and Pank Balanoes e 138,047 622
Met DebtVExcess Cash And Cash Al

Equivalents)

Gearing -
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15 Related Party Disclosures

Nature of related party relationships
Entities and other parties related to the Cemire include those parties who have ability to exercise

cantrol or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related parties
inelude management personnel, their associates and close family members.
Government of Kenya
The Government of Kenya is the principal sharcholder of the Cengre, holding 100% of the Centre s
equity interest. The Government of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-term lenders of
the Centre, both domestic and external.
Other related parties inclode:

i} Ministry of Education.

i) County Governnents

iy Other 5Cs and SAGAS

iv)  Teachers Service Commission {TSC) & Key management.

v) Board of board of governors.

ST FY 20222023 FY 2021/2022

Description :
Kshs Kshs

Transactions with related parties
a) purchases from related parties
Purchases of electricity from KIPLC 6,086,975 4,711,924
Total 0,086,975 4,711,924
by Grants /transfers from the
Fovernmend
Cirants from national government 97,681,666 967,938,975
Donations in kind 10,438,397 385,201
Total 000,120,063 968,324,176
¢)  Key management
com pensation
Board of governors” emoluments 15,670,773 -
Total 15,670,773 =
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26. Segment Information
The centre does not have branches in Kenya or outside Kenya

27, Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilitics
The centre did not have contingent assets and liabilities in the reporting period

28, Capital Commitments

The centre did not have Capital commitments are commitments to be carried out in the next
linancial year to be disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 17,

29. Events after the Reporting Period
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

3. Ultimate And Holding Centre
The Centre is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonemous Government Apency under the Ministry

of xxx. Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya,

3l. Curréncy
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) rounded 1o the nearest K shs,
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Appendices

Appendix 1: Implementation Status of Anditor-General's Recommendations

The centre did not have outstanding andit issues in the financial year 202172022, bence

received an ungualified repor,

Chiel Executive Officer

Date 2 £-06- 20273
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Appendix I: Projects implemented by Cenire

Projects implemented by the CEMASTEA Funded by development partners and! or the
Giovernment,

MA | NA MA | NA N/A N/A NIA
ol ;

Appendix HT: Status of Projects completion

NIA | N/A NIA NIA N/A N/A N/A NAA
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